The Papillon Club of America, Inc. (Incorporated in the State of Delaware, 2001)

Standing Resolutions

(As approved by the Membership as of May 22, 2025)

Table of Contents

STANDING RESOLUTION #05-1 - CLUB AWARDS Hall of Fame – Golden and Silver Butterfly Awards Hall of Fame - Top Owner-Handled Award Hall of Fame - Top Agility Award Hall of Fame - Top Obedience Award Hall of Fame - Top Junior Showman Award Sires and Dams Awards Versatility Awards STANDING RESOLUTION #07-1 - DEPOSIT ACCOMPANYING WRITTEN CHA	2
AGAINST ANOTHER MEMBER	
STANDING RESOLUTION #08-1 - PCA NATIONAL SPECIALTY JUDGES' SELE Judges' Criteria, Selection, and Voting Process	
1) Criteria for the selection of judges:	9
 Selection Process:	
4) Ballot:	
5) Revisions to be Incorporated into the National Show Manual:	
6) Conclusion:	11
STANDING RESOLUTION #14 - PAPILLON BENEVOLENT FUND	12
STANDING RESOLUTION #16 - PAPILLON GENETIC RESEARCH COMMITTE	E14
STANDING RESOLUTION #17-1 – BREED MENTOR STATUS	16
STANDING RESOLUTION #19-1 – SUPPORT OF AKC NATIONAL CHAMPION AND RELATED EVENTS	
STANDING RESOLUTION #24-1 – PAPILLONS ONLY ENTRY AT PCA NATIO SPECIALTY EVENTS	
Notes:	19

STANDING RESOLUTION #05-1 - CLUB AWARDS

Hall of Fame - Golden and Silver Butterfly Awards

- A certificate and an award, as designated by the Board, will be presented at the Annual Awards Banquet to the Papillons meeting the requirements of the "Golden Butterfly Award" as well as the "Silver Butterfly Award":
 - a) Only Papillons owned, or co-owned, by Members in good standing of The Papillon Club of America, Inc., for the entire qualification year, are eligible for the "Golden Butterfly Award" and the "Silver Butterfly Award".
 - b) The Golden Butterfly Award winner will be the Papillon ranked number one as determined by the AKC Papillon Conformation Report utilizing both Best of Breed (BOB) and Best of Opposite Sex (OS) Points for dogs defeated, sorted by Total Points descending, for the qualification period covering January 1st through December 31st annually.
 - c) The Silver Butterfly Award winner will be the highest ranked Papillon of the opposite sex to the Golden Butterfly Award winner, as determined by the AKC Papillon Conformation Report utilizing both Best of Breed (BOB) and Best of Opposite Sex (OS) Points for dogs defeated, sorted by Total Points descending, for the qualification period covering January 1st through December 31st annually.
 - d) Duplicate awards will be given in the event of a tie.
- 2) An Officer or Director of the Club, as designated by the Board, will obtain the "AKC Papillon Conformation Report" from reports@akc.org. The designated Board Member will notify the Board of the winners of the Award along with the supporting AKC Report. The Corresponding Secretary will submit the information to the Webmaster and/or Pap Talk Editor for publication.
- 3) The Corresponding Secretary will notify the recipient(s) of this award by first class mail, on or before February 15th of the following year. The award will be mailed if the Member(s) is/are not present at the Annual Awards Banquet.
- 4) Each winner under this program will be added to the PCA Hall of Fame.

Hall of Fame - Top Owner-Handled Award

- A certificate and an award, as designated by the Board, will be presented at the Annual Awards Banquet to the Papillon meeting the requirements of the "Top Owner-Handled Award":
 - a) Only Papillons owned, or co-owned, by Members in good standing of The Papillon Club of America, Inc. for the entire qualification year, are eligible for the Papillon "Top Owner-Handled Award".
 - b) The Top Owner Handled Award winner will be the Papillon ranked number one as determined by the "AKC National Owner-Handled Series Rankings – Top 25 (Breed –

Papillons)", sorted by OHS Points descending, for the qualification period covering January 1st through December 31st annually.

- c) Duplicate awards will be given in the event of a tie.
- 2) An Officer or Director of the Club, as designated by the Board, will obtain the "AKC National Owner-Handled Series Rankings – Top 25 (Breed – Papillons)" from reports@akc.org. The designated Board Member will notify the Board of the winner of the Award along with the supporting AKC Report. The Corresponding Secretary will submit the information to the Webmaster and/or Pap Talk Editor for publication.
- 3) The Corresponding Secretary will notify the recipient(s) of this award by first class mail, on or before February 15th of the following year. The award will be mailed if the Member(s) is/are not present at the Annual Awards Banquet.
- 4) Each winner under this program will be added to the PCA Hall of Fame.

Hall of Fame - Top Agility Award

- A certificate and an award, as designated by the Board, will be presented at the Annual Awards Banquet to the Papillon meeting the requirements of the "Top Agility Award":
 - a) Only Papillons owned, or co-owned, by Members in good standing of The Papillon Club of America, Inc., for the entire qualification year, are eligible for the Papillon "Top Agility Award".
 - b) The Top Agility Award winner will be the Papillon ranked number one, as determined by the "AKC TopDogs® in Agility MACH Competition for Papillons Report", sorted by Total Points descending, for the qualification period covering January 1st through December 31st annually and is based on the total number of MACH (Master Agility Championship) points dogs have earned.
 - c) Duplicate awards will be given in the event of a tie.
- 2) An Officer or Director of the Club, as designated by the Board, will obtain the "AKC TopDogs® in Agility MACH Competition for Papillons Report" from the AKC website. The designated Board Member will notify the Board of the winner of the Award along with the supporting AKC Report. The Corresponding Secretary will submit the information to the Webmaster and/or Pap Talk Editor for publication.
- 3) The Corresponding Secretary will notify the recipient(s) of this award by first class mail, on or before February 15th of the following year. The award will be mailed if the Member(s) is/are not present at the Annual Awards Banquet.
- 4) Each winner under this program will be added to the PCA Hall of Fame.

Hall of Fame - Top Obedience Award

- A certificate and an award, as designated by the Board, will be presented at the Annual Awards Banquet to the Papillon meeting the requirements of the "Top Obedience Award":
 - a) Only Papillons owned, or co-owned, by Members in good standing of The Papillon Club of America, Inc., for the entire qualification year, are eligible for the Papillon "Top Obedience Award".
 - b) The Top Obedience Award winner will be the Papillon ranked number one as determined by the "AKC TopDogs® in Obedience Competition for Papillons Report" that is based on OTCH points earned, sorted by Points descending, for the qualification period covering January 1st through December 31st annually.
 - c) Duplicate awards will be given in the event of a tie.
- 2) An Officer or Director of the Club, as designated by the Board, will obtain the "AKC TopDogs® in Obedience Competition for Papillons Report" from the AKC website. The designated Board Member will notify the Board of the winner of the Award along with the supporting AKC Report. The Corresponding Secretary will submit the information to the Webmaster and/or Pap Talk Editor for publication.
- 3) The Corresponding Secretary will notify the recipient(s) of this award by first class mail, on or before February 15th of the following year. The award will be mailed if the Member(s) is/are not present at the Annual Awards Banquet.
- 4) Each winner under this program will be added to the PCA Hall of Fame.

Hall of Fame - Top Junior Showman Award

- A certificate and an award, as designated by the Board, will be presented at the Annual Awards Banquet to the Junior Handler meeting the requirements of the "Top Junior Showman Award":
 - a) Only PCA Members in good standing of The Papillon Club of America, Inc., that competed as a Junior Handler with a Papillon, during the qualifying year, shall be eligible to compete for the "Top Junior Showman Award".
 - b) The Top Junior Showman will be the PCA Member who has accumulated the greatest number of points, i.e. Junior Handlers defeated as a PCA Junior Member while showing a Papillon in Open Junior, Open Intermediate, Open Senior, or Master Classes, as determined by the AKC "Papillon Juniors Report", for the qualification period covering January 1st through December 31st annually. Points will be awarded for the time period that the PCA Member was a Junior Handler in good standing.
- 2) An Officer or Director of the Club, as designated by the Board, will obtain the "Papillon Juniors Report" from reports@akc.org. The designated Board Member will notify the Board of the

winner of the Award along with the supporting AKC Report. The Corresponding Secretary will submit the information to the Webmaster and/or Pap Talk Editor for publication.

- 3) The Corresponding Secretary will notify the recipient(s) of this award by first class mail, on or before February 15th of the following year. The award will be mailed if the Member(s) is/are not present at the Annual Awards Banquet.
- 4) Any PCA Junior Member who competed with, and has qualified with a Papillon for the Westminster Kennel Club Dog Show in New York will be eligible to receive an award of some pecuniary value approved by the Board. The monetary award will be mailed to the PCA Junior Member(s) after they have competed as a Junior at Westminster with a Papillon.

Sires and Dams Awards

- Certificates will be issued annually to the Papillons meeting the requirements of "Sire of Distinction (SOD)", "Dam of Distinction (DOD)", "Sire of Merit (SOM)", and "Dam of Merit (DOM)".
- 2) A Papillon becomes a "Sire or Dam of Distinction or Merit" based on the number of his/her firstgeneration offspring that achieves a title of Champion (CH), Master Agility Champion (MACH), Utility Dog (UD), or Tracking Dog Excellent (TDX), as published in the AKC New Titles Report.
- Only Papillons owned (or co-owned) by members in good standing of the Papillon Club of America, Inc. are eligible for "Sire or Dam of Distinction or Merit" awards under this program.
- 4) Only the first qualified title is counted towards the "Sire or Dam of Distinction or Merit". A Papillon earning multiple CH, MACH, UD, and/or TDX titles will only be counted once. In addition, at least half of the required number of offspring must be Champion titled.
- 5) The required levels are:
- a) Sire of Distinction (SOD): 13 or more qualified offspring, including 7 or more Champions.
- b) Dam of Distinction (DOD): 10 or more qualified offspring, including 5 or more Champions.
- c) Sire of Merit (SOM): 5 to 12 qualified offspring, including 3 or more Champions.
- d) Dam of Merit (DOM): 4 to 9 qualified offspring, including 2 or more Champions.
- 6) The Archivist will post the recipients of this award on the PCA website. The award will be presented at the Annual Awards Banquet. The award will be mailed if the member is not present.
- 7) Each recipient under this program will be added to the PCA Hall of Fame.

Versatility Awards

- 1) Certificates will be awarded for the following versatility awards:
 - a) VP Versatile Papillon
 - b) VPA Versatile Papillon Advanced
 - c) cVPX Versatile Papillon Excellent
- 2) Only living dogs are eligible for the awards and the owner or at least one co-owner of the dog must be a member of PCA at the time the application is submitted. Categories and points for titles earned are specified on the Application Form (see #5 below). In addition, the following are the eligibility requirements for the various certificates:
 - a) VP Requires at least 5 Versatility Points from at least 2 of the categories.
 - b) VPA Requires at least 10 Versatility Points from at least 3 of the categories.
 - c) VPX Requires at least 15 Versatility Points from at least 3 of the categories, of which a minimum of 6 Versatility Points must be from the Conformation category (this means that to receive a VPX the dog must be a breed champion).
- 3) When applying for the award, only the highest achievement at the time of the award will count towards the Versatility Award (i.e., a dog with a conformation Championship will not be awarded additional points for being Major pointed but will receive the points only for the Championship). When applying for additional awards (for example when a dog with a VP award is applying for a VPA award) the Versatility Points are cumulative, meaning that they do not need to be re awarded. For example, 6 Versatility Points from earning a conformation Championship will count towards a VP award and will be counted again towards a dog's VPA award. Another example is that a dog who was Major Pointed when applying for the VP award but who earns his Championship before applying for the VPA award will be given credit for the Championship as its new highest achievement, but the points earned for being Major Pointed will no longer be counted).
- 4) Achievements earned via the American Kennel Club must be documented by providing the most recent title progression report from AKC's website. A limited number of miscellaneous titles earned under non-AKC programs may be eligible for Versatility points. Achievements (such as Barn Hunt titles) earned through other organizations under AKC's Title Recognition Program must be documented to AKC via its Title Application Portal.
- 5) To receive any of the three Versatility Awards, you must fill out the application that is located on the Papillon Club of America website (under "Forms" in the Members' Only section) and return your application along with a copy of AKC's title progression report to the individual cited on the application form, who will review the application to confirm that your dog is qualified for the requested award.

6) Certificates are presented each year at the PCA National Specialty. Applications must be received by February 15th of the year for the certificate to be awarded at that year's National Specialty. Awards not picked up at the National Specialty will be mailed to the owner.

STANDING RESOLUTION #07-1 - DEPOSIT ACCOMPANYING WRITTEN CHARGES AGAINST ANOTHER MEMBER

RESOLVED: that pursuant to the Constitution and Bylaws of the Papillon Club of America, Inc. **ARTICLE X. DISCIPLINE. Section 2**. Charges, the deposit which is to accompany the written charges is to be \$100.00.

STANDING RESOLUTION #08-1 - PCA NATIONAL SPECIALTY JUDGES' SELECTION as modified by SR#25-01

Judges' Criteria, Selection, and Voting Process

The National Specialty is the largest and most prestigious event that the Club sponsors on a yearly basis and therefore should be well attended and supported regardless of the location within the country. The judges selected to officiate on our breed should be those who have gained the respect and admiration of a great many of our members. They should clearly enjoy judging our breed. Among other things, this process is geared to give the membership a chance to see names that they may not have thought of and to discuss the judges before the ballot is received. Any Member notifications required by this SR may be made via Pap Talk, United States Postal Service, or electronically to the Membership. This SR shall not apply to any PCA Regional Specialties along with those that occur at the National.

1) Criteria for the selection of judges:

- a) No judge that has judged a National within the 10 years prior to February 1st of the year ballots are counted will be eligible to appear on the ballot.
- b) Any Judge that has judged Papillons within six months of the PCA National at any show within the fifty United States will not be eligible to judge PCA's National Specialty.
- c) Only judges that have been approved to judge Papillons for a period of 2 years prior to February 1st of the year ballots are counted, or longer, will be eligible.
- d) No one who is currently campaigning or associated with the campaign of a Champion Papillon will be eligible to appear on the current ballot to judge the National Specialty. "Campaigning" means association through ownership, co-ownership, breeding, or co-breeding of or to any dog which consistently appears in the Top Ten rankings of our breed as published monthly by the AKC and the Canine Chronicle."
- e) Any person who has been approved to judge and award points, CC's, etc. within their own country will be eligible to be placed on the ballot. Should this person receive the required number of votes, then the final approval for the assignment would be the responsibility of the AKC. These proposed judges can be American, Canadian or foreign.
- f) For a person to be placed on the ballot he/she must have received no less than five nominations from individual members.

2) Selection Process:

- a) Sometime during the first quarter of the election year the Board will select and approve a committee of a minimum of two members, but not more than four, to handle the Judges' Ballot and Voting process. At least one of these committee members must be actively exhibiting in the conformation ring.
- b) The duties of the Committee shall be as follows:
 - Request of the Membership that they submit no more than four names of those persons they wish to see judge at our National Specialty. Members will also be asked to list no more than three names of persons they wish to see judge our National Sweepstakes.
 - Receive the members' list of proposed judges and establish that they meet the above criteria to be placed on the ballot. Members may submit their choices to the Committee either by hard copy or electronically.
 - iii) Notify the Membership by the end of August of the list of qualified judges' names, with a notice to the membership that they may continue to submit their choices to the Committee until on or before October 1st.
 - iv) Contact nominated Sweepstakes Judges to ascertain if they desire to judge, prior to preparing the ballot.
 - v) Assure that no names will appear on the ballot if the participant has declined the invitation to judge. The Membership will be notified by the end of October of the names of the judges that have been successfully nominated, those that have declined, as well as those that were determined to be ineligible along with why there were determined to be ineligible.

3) Eligibility for Voting:

- a) You must be a current voting member of PCA in good standing on February 1st of the voting year for your vote to be counted.
- b) Each voting member will be allowed to submit four names for the National Specialty Judge and three names for a Sweepstakes Judge. It is preferred that the names all be submitted at the same time.
- 4) Ballot:
 - a) Voting for the National Specialty Conformation and Sweepstakes Judges' will be done in the same manner and time as the election of Club Officers' and Directors' positions.

- b) The list of qualified National Specialty Judges and Sweepstakes Judges will appear on the ballot in alphabetical order. This ballot will contain ONLY those names that have been received from the Membership and where the Membership has been notified, and where the names have been received between August 1st and October 1st of the Ballot Year.
- c) Any mailed and unsigned ballots or any ballot received after January 31st will be declared invalid and will not be counted.
- d) If a Member chooses to vote for only one judge rather than two, that will be allowed. The points will be counted the same as if both nominations were submitted.
- e) The member will vote in order of preference numbering their choices one and then two. Example:
 - i) Ms. Butterfly Ears (will receive two points).
 - ii) Mr. Personality (will receive one points).
- f) Each eligible PCA Member will vote for no more than two judges in their order of preference.
 Only one Judges' Choice ballot will be accepted and if mailed, rather than through electronic balloting, must be returned in the same envelope as the Officers and Directors' Election Ballot.
 Duplicate names on the same ballot will only be counted once.
- 5) Conclusion:
 - a) In the event of a tie, the National Specialty Judges' counting firm will take a straw vote to break the tie.
 - b) The results will be published in Pap Talk.
 - c) The voted list of judges will be used until the next election of Club Officers and Board of Directors.
 - d) The judge with the most votes will be contacted first. If he or she declines the invitation for that year's national, he/she will have first refusal for the following year providing it is within the two years that the membership has voted for.
 - e) The remaining judges will be contacted in the order in which they received the most votes.

STANDING RESOLUTION #14 - PAPILLON BENEVOLENT FUND

RESOLVED: The Papillon Assistance Program (PAP) shall hereby replace the Benevolent Fund, and shall be comprised of two parts operating under the direction/supervision of the Pap Chairperson.

- Part one shall be called the Benevolent Fund and shall contain monies set aside for the assistance of members in good standing and others, who through no fault or negligence on their part, become temporarily in need of financial assistance related to their dogs and/or their breeding program. Criteria for approval shall be application, subject to the recommendation of the PAP Chairperson, and ratification by the majority vote of the Board.
 - a) Funds for the Benevolent Fund portion of the PAP shall consist of \$1,000 taken from the existing PAP funds, augmented by donations received in the future which are specifically designated for the newly created Benevolent Fund division of the PAP.
- Part two shall be called the **Rescue Fund** and shall be used to support activities on behalf of displaced Papillons.
- 3) The PAP Fund will be administered by a chairperson appointed annually by the Board of Trustees and a committee approved by the Board. The members of this committee shall have the power to raise money for the Fund. The various methods used to raise money may include:
 - a) Fun matches for Papillons or all breed fun matches.
 - b) Raffles or similar games of chance.
 - c) Request for donations.
 - d) Bequeaths from estates.
 - e) Auctions and sales of items made at the request of the committee.
 - f) Sale of commercial items for a percentage of the profits.
 - g) Fifty cents added to specialty entry fees.
 - h) Any other legal method that may be determined at a later date.
- 4) All income generated by the PAP Fund Committee will accrue to the PAP Fund and cannot be used for any purpose other than those specified in the Standing Resolution. The members of the committee shall serve in a voluntary capacity, receiving no personal compensation except for the following expenses:
 - a) Postage.
 - b) \$300 maximum for travel expenses in an emergency situation.
 - c) Telephone calls.

These expenses shall be documented in order for the committee member to be reimbursed and documentation shall be submitted within thirty (30) days in order to be valid. All other expenses connected with the PAP committee will be borne by the volunteers.

5) The PCA Treasurer shall maintain a separate PAP Fund Account within the established PCA account and dispense funds in accordance with accepted PCA policy. Accounting records for funds belonging

to each category (Rescue and Benevolent) shall be maintained. The committee shall be able to expend funds from the PAP Fund Account to cover the situations below as well as similar ones, subject to the restrictions in items 6) and 7) below:

- a) Aid and assist in the care and placement of dogs in the event of illness, infirmity, or death of a PCA member.
- b) Assist in the care and boarding of dogs, not to exceed thirty (30) days, of a PCA member who may be physically impaired, ill, or deceased. This may be limited by funds available in the Benevolent Fund account.
- c) Assist in the placement of dogs found in shelters such as those of local governments or Humane Societies.
- d) Assist in locating missing or stolen dogs belonging to PCA members. These dogs must be identifiable by tattoo, nose print, or some recognized method of positive identification (the committee shall offer to PCA members, at various functions such as Specialty Shows, the opportunity to provide their dogs with tattoos or other methods of identification at nominal cost).
- e) Offer advice to PCA members and new puppy buyers who are potential new PCA members (e.g., recommend diets, shot procedures, and health care, etc.). This is not to be construed as a veterinary service.
- 6) Availability of any and all of the above services will depend upon the solvency of the PAP Fund account. All dogs placed by the PAP committee in their official capacity or with the expenditure of Fund monies must be spayed or neutered prior to placement if PCA obtains legal title to the animal, and its health and age permit.
- 7) The committee or its representatives are not to engage in any assistance to wholesale puppy breeders, pet shops, or any other commercial business in any way related to dog activities.
- PCA will not reimburse any funds expended in a manner contrary to that specified in this Standing Resolution. PCA will take legal action to remove itself from any activities prohibited by item 7) above or any illegal activities of committee members.

STANDING RESOLUTION #16 - PAPILLON GENETIC RESEARCH COMMITTEE

RESOLVED: The Genetic Research Committee, hereafter referred to as "GRC" will be administered by a committee chairman appointed by the Board. One committee member should be a veterinarian. If no veterinarian is willing to serve on the committee, then one member should have a degree in genetics or a related discipline. All other members shall have been active breeders of Papillons for no less than 5 years. The members of the GRC will serve as volunteers and receive no personal compensation.

- 1) The GRC committee will poll the membership via surveys published in Pap Talk, on the PCA web site and/or distributed at PCA and Independent Papillon Club Specialties to determine which disorders, diseases, or conditions are the affecting Papillons. Results of these surveys will be used to establish research funding targets for PCA's Genetic Research efforts. The GRC shall report to the PCA membership on activities and progress at least once per PCA fiscal year.
- 2) The GRC committee shall have the power to raise funds for purposes as described in this Standing Resolution. The various methods used to raise money may be:
 - a) Fun matches in accordance with AKC regulations.
 - b) Raffles or similar games of chance.
 - c) Requests for donations.
 - d) Bequeaths from estates.
 - e) Auctions and sales of items made at the request of the committee.
 - f) Sale of commercial items for a percentage of the profits.
 - g) Any other legal method that may be determined at a later date.
- 3) All funds raised by the GRC will accrue to the Genetic Research Fund and cannot be used for any purpose other than that specified in this standing resolution.
- 4) The PCA Treasurer shall maintain a separate Genetic Research Committee Fund Account within the established PCA account in accordance with the provisions of 5) below, and shall dispense funds in accordance with accepted PCA policy.
- 5) Funds allocated to the GRC account may be general GRC funds, or be held in accounts established to earmark funds for specific disorders, diseases, or conditions at the discretion of the contributor.
 - a) General GRC funds may be allocated to research or genetics-related projects based on recommendation of the GRC Committee and approval of the PCA Board.
 - b) Funds earmarked for specific disorders, diseases, or conditions shall be dispensed via grant to designated professional study groups or research projects based on availability of both funds and projects focused on the specific disorder, disease, or condition applicable to the funds' restriction.

- 6) Disclosure provisions: The GRC shall manage PCA's disclosure of diseases, disorders, or conditions affecting individual Papillons. Disclosure will be conducted on a voluntary basis in accordance with the following provisions:
 - a) The GRC shall develop and maintain a disclosure authorization form, and shall provide this form upon request to PCA members or members of the general public.
 - b) The authorization form shall be signed by all individuals listed as owner(s) of record with AKC, and include a waiver of liability to the Papillon Club of America, Inc., its Board, and Members.
 - c) A returned form will be reviewed for completeness and compliance with the disclosure policies by the GRC Chairman. The final verified correct form will then be forwarded to the PCA Recording Secretary within 10 days of verification and acceptance by the GRC chairman. Disclosure forms will be maintained in the permanent files of PCA by the Recording Secretary. A duplicate copy will be maintained by the Genetic Research Committee chairman. All pertinent facts of the disclosure will be published in all PCA education venues such as, but not limited to, Pap Talk and the PCA Genetics webpage.
 - d) GRC members are prohibited from disclosing the identity of any Papillon(s) affected or suspected of being affected by any disorder, disease, or condition, or its owner(s), or breeder(s), without written authorization as outlined in a) through c) above.
- 7) Should an allegation with probable cause be made suggesting that a committee member may be in violation of SR # 16, section 6) d), the offending member may be suspended from committee membership/activity, pending action at the next available board meeting, by a vote of the PCA Board. The PCA Board, at the next scheduled Board meeting, will make a determination based on the facts submitted and may remove the accused individual from the GRC.
- 8) PCA may take legal action to indemnify itself against liability arising from any illegal activity of GRC committee members.
- 9) PCA's CHIC (Canine Health Information Center) program shall consist of:
 - a) Eye Examination by an American College of Veterinary Ophthalmologists Board Certified
 Ophthalmologist with a recommended screening every two (2) years and registered with one of
 the following organizations:
 - i) Orthopedic Foundation for Animals (OFA), OR
 - ii) Canine Eye Registry Foundation (CERF).
 - b) Patellar Luxation OFA Evaluation no earlier than twelve (12) months of age registered with OFA.
 - c) One of the following electives:
 - i) Progressive Retinal Atrophy Type 1 (PRA1) DNA Test on file with OFA, OR
 - ii) Neuroaxonal Dystrophy (NAD) Test on file with OFA, OR
 - iii) Congenital Cardiac Exam with a minimum age of twelve (12) months on file with OFA, OR
 - iv) Advanced Cardiac Exam on file with OFA.

STANDING RESOLUTION #17-1 – BREED MENTOR STATUS

RESOLVED: Once a Mentor is accepted into the Breed Mentor Program, their status will be maintained as long as the Mentor is a Member in good standing with PCA and no further action (paperwork or documentation), will be required.

STANDING RESOLUTION #19-1 – SUPPORT OF AKC NATIONAL CHAMPIONSHIP SHOW AND RELATED EVENTS.

WHEREAS The Papillon Club of America, Inc. (PCA) is the National Parent Club of the Papillon Breed and a Member of The American Kennel Club, Inc., (AKC), and

WHEREAS the AKC National Championship Show is the AKC's preeminent annual Event, and

WHEREAS the PCA desires to support the AKC in the success of its preeminent annual event and associated festivities,

BE IT RESOLVED that whenever economically viable, and whenever enough volunteers may make themselves available to meet AKC's requirements, then the PCA is encouraged to be supportive of the following annual AKC events to the best of its abilities whenever possible:

- The AKC National Championship Show, and
- The AKC Agility Invitational, and
- The AKC Obedience Classic, and
- The AKC National Owner Handled Finals, and
- The AKC National All-Breed Puppy and Junior Stakes, and
- The AKC Meet The Breeds Booth held in conjunction with the AKC National Championship Show.

STANDING RESOLUTION #24-1 – PAPILLONS ONLY ENTRY AT PCA NATIONAL SPECIALTY EVENTS.

• PCA National Specialty Events will be held for Papillons only.

Notes:

Current Resolutions:

STANDING RESOLUTION #07-1 - DEPOSIT ACCOMPANYING WRITTEN CHARGES AGAINST ANOTHER MEMBER

Adopted: April 14, 2007.

STANDING RESOLUTION #05-1 - CLUB AWARDS

Versatility modified May 22, 2025.

Gold and Silver Butterfly Award - Approved: October 27, 2005 Effective Date: January 1, 2006; Revised April 22, 2008, May 22, 2009, May 30, 2019.

Agility Award – Effective Date January 1, 2007; Revised September 10, 2007, based on motion passed by the Membership on April 14, 2007.

Top Bronze Awards Revised May 30, 2019, based on a motion passed by the Membership on May 30, 2019, effective July 01, 2019.

STANDING RESOLUTION #08-1 - P.C.A. National Specialty Judges Selection

Modified May 22, 2025.

Adopted: April 24, 2008; Effective: With Judge's Ballot year 2011.

STANDING RESOLUTION #14 PAPILLON BENEVOLENT FUND

Adopted: 6 June 1999; Revised: 28 Feb 1991, 1 May 1992, and 22 May 1999.

STANDING RESOLUTION 16 - PAPILLON GENETIC RESEARCH COMMITTEE

Adopted: 7 May 2010; Effective: 7 May 2010; Revised: 31 Jan 1993, 6 Nov 1994, and 6 May 2002.

STANDING RESOLUTION 17-1 – Breed Mentor Status

Adopted: 27 April 2017; Effective: 27 April 2017.

STANDING RESOLUTION 18-1 - Revise SR 16 to add and modify PCA's CHIC

Program

Adopted: 07 June 2018; Effective: 01 January 2019.

STANDING RESOLUTION 18-2 – Revise SR16

Adopted: 07 June 2018; Effective: 07 June 2018.

STANDING RESOLUTION 18-5 – Revise SR08-1

Adopted: 07 June 2018; Effective: 07 June 2018.

STANDING RESOLUTION 18-6 – Revise SR05-1 to Add Junior Showmanship

Master Classes.

Adopted: 07 June 2018; Effective: 07 June 2018.

STANDING RESOLUTION 19-1 – Support of AKC National Championship Show and Related Events.

Adopted: 30 May 2019; Effective: 30 May 2019.

STANDING RESOLUTION 24-1 - Papillons Only Entry at PCA National Specialty

Events.

Adopted: 30 May 2024; Effective: 30 May 2024.

Rescinded Resolutions:

STANDING RESOLUTION 1-9 -

Rescinded: 23 April 2004.

STANDING RESOLUTION 2 -

Replaced by SR 5-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 3 -

Replaced by SR 5-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 5-2 –

Rescinded: 24 April 2008; Replaced by SR 8-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 8-1 -

Adopted: 24 April 2008; Replaced by SR 5-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 10 -

Rescinded: 10 February 2003.

STANDING RESOLUTION 11-12 –

Rescinded: 23 April 2004.

STANDING RESOLUTION 18 -

Replaced by SR 5-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 13 -

Replaced by Pap Talk Guidelines.

STANDING RESOLUTION 17-21 -

Rescinded: 23 April 2004.

STANDING RESOLUTION 18 -

Replaced by SR 5-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 19 -

Replaced by SR 5-1.

STANDING RESOLUTION 22 –

Rescinded: 6 May 2005.